Sky Ranch Community Authority Board Bylaws of the Sky Ranch Citizens Advisory Committee

I. <u>Preamble</u>:

- A. The Board of Directors (CAB Board) of the Sky Ranch Community Authority Board (the CAB) wishes to encourage full and timely public participation in the decision-making process of the CAB Board on important CAB Board activities and, to expand that participation, the CAB Board has determined to create a Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC).
- B. Pursuant to Section 29-1-203 et. seq., C.R.S., and the respective Service Plans for the Sky Ranch Metropolitan District Nos. 1 and 3-8, as applicable (the Service Plans), the CAB Board has not, and legally cannot, delegate to the CAC any responsibility placed upon the CAB Board by law.

II. <u>Purpose/Mission</u>:

- A. It is the CAC's mission to advise the CAB Board:
 - 1. On matters of interest to the CAC:
 - 2. On matters of citizen participation relative to the Sky Ranch Master Planned Community (the Community), as served by the CAB, to further the benefits of living in the Community; and
 - 3. To facilitate public discussion and feedback concerning the CAB Board's activities and development within the Community, as related to services or improvements provided by the CAB.

III. <u>Composition of CAC</u>:

- A. Size of the CAC: The CAC shall consist of at least five (5), and no more than nine (9), members.
- B. Terms of Membership: Membership terms for CAC Leadership shall be two (2) year terms; provided, however, that the Chair position shall be a one (1) year term that may be extended by an additional one (1) year term by unanimous vote of the then-existing CAC. Membership terms for Members other than CAC Leadership shall be one (1) year terms. No member shall serve more than two (2) consecutive terms; provided, however, that the foregoing term limits shall not apply if: (i) no other individual in the Community is interested in serving on the CAC; or (ii) a

former Member is re-appointed to the CAC after a one-year absence from the CAC.

- C. Qualifications and Appointment of CAC Members:
 - Appointing authority. The CAB Board shall be the appointing authority for the CAC, subject to the recommendations which follow.
 - 2. CAC Leadership. The CAC Leadership shall be composed of three members of the CAC: a Chair, a Vice-Chair, and a Secretary. The CAC Leadership positions shall be elected in November by members of the CAC for: (i) the Chair position, a term of one (1) year from the first following January to the first following December, unless such term is extended by one (1) additional year pursuant to Section III.B., above; and (ii) the Vice-Chair and Secretary positions, respective terms of two (2) years running from the first following January to the second following December. In the event of a vacancy in the Chair's position, the Vice-Chair will take up the position and a new Vice-Chair will be elected by the CAC. Vacancies shall be filled within thirty (30) days of vacancy.

Nomination Procedure:

- a) Required Representation The CAB Board recognizes that the Community is growing, and that development is ongoing. Therefore, the Required Representation for CAC membership shall be a reasonable reflection and balance, as determined by the CAB Board, of Social Diversity (as defined below) and District Diversity (as defined below).
 - (1) Social Diversity: The CAB Board recognizes that the collective sum of the individual differences, life experiences, knowledge, inventiveness, innovation, self-expression, unique capabilities and talent of the individuals within the Community are a significant part of the Community's culture and wishes to foster acceptance of diversity and encourages full participation from a broad-based CAC membership. CAC membership shall include a reasonable representation of Social Diversity. Social Diversity includes without limitation, individual characteristics such as age, color, culture, ethnicity, gender, gender

- identity or expression, race, national origin, geography, language or language preference, fluency, first-generation status, veteran status, physical ability, disability, political beliefs, religion/spirituality, sexual orientation, marital status/partnership, socio-economic status, economic resources, professional choices, methods, ideas, and other facets of social diversity.
- (2) District Diversity: Upon completion of development within the Community, CAC membership shall include a reasonable representation from each of the Sky Ranch Metropolitan Districts that have residential property within its boundaries (the Residential Districts). Until development within the Community is completed, CAC membership shall contain a reasonable representation of the then-existing Residential Districts, as determined by the CAB Board. For example, in 2021, if Sky Ranch Metropolitan District No. 1 (District No. 1) is the only Sky Ranch Metropolitan District that has residential property within its boundaries, all persons in the CAC membership may reside in District No. 1. For example, if in 2022, Sky Ranch Metropolitan District No. 3 (District No. 3) also has residential property within its boundaries, the CAC membership shall reflect a reasonable representation, as determined by the CAB Board, of those persons then residing in District No. 1 and District No. 3.
- b) Proposals for nominations For Spring/Summer 2021, proposals for nominations may be submitted to the CAB Board, or one of its consultants. Following creation of the CAC, proposals for nominations may be submitted to the CAC by any interested individual then residing in one of the Sky Ranch Metropolitan Districts, after the existence of open position(s) has been publicized.
- c) Who makes nominations/approval or denial of nominations:

 Nominations for CAC membership shall be made to the CAB

 Board by the CAC. The CAB Board, in its discretion, may
 approve or deny the CAC's nominations for membership. In

- the event the CAB Board denies a membership nomination, the CAC will submit further nominations to the CAB Board for its consideration.
- d) Selection: The CAC or CAB Board may conduct interviews of candidates for membership. Interviews shall occur at an open meeting, but deliberations regarding candidates may be at a closed meeting.
- e) Vacancies: upon expiration of term or otherwise nominations to fill any vacancy on the CAC shall be made in accordance with the provisions of this section 3; provided, however, that the CAC may select its nominees from the proposals for nominations for the particular vacancy or vacancies to be filled if said proposals were received by the CAC within 6 months prior to the making of such nominations and if said proposals were received in response to publicizing of the existence of open positions in the particular categories of eligibility in which said vacancy or vacancies are to be filled. In the event of a failure to provide nominations to the CAB Board for any vacancy on the CAC within 90 days of notification of said vacancy, the CAB Board shall thereafter be free to appoint any person, having the qualifications set forth in these Bylaws, to fill such vacancy.
- 4. General qualifications: All CAC members shall be residents of one of the Sky Ranch Metropolitan Districts.
- 5. Members who are absent from three (3) consecutive meetings will be deemed to have resigned their position.

IV. CAC Duties and Activities:

- A. Provide advice on the use and effectiveness of citizen participation techniques by the CAB Board.
- B. Assist in and facilitate public consideration and discussion of CAB Board activities.
- C. Advise the CAB Board in planning for issues of interest to the CAC, including but not limited to park and recreational facilities and activities.
- D. Provide input, skills, and knowledge towards specific projects through

- engagement with residents in the Community.
- E. Each CAC member shall actively serve and participate on the CAC.
- F. Neither the CAC nor any Member of the CAC has the authority to act or speak on behalf of the CAB Board. Any Member of the CAC who purports to act or speak on behalf of the CAB Board may be removed from the CAC for this reason or other reasons, at the CAB Board's discretion. Neither the CAC nor any Member of the CAC may enter into any contract in the name of the CAB, and shall not any incur debt, liability or obligation for or on behalf of the CAB.
- G. Public Meetings: CAC meetings shall be open to the public, and the CAC may receive public comments, in its discretion.
 - 1. The CAC shall meet at least once per year, and may schedule additional meetings as desired, upon majority vote of the CAC members. The Chair of the CAC shall set the date, time, and location of meetings and shall provide members with appropriate notice and agenda for such meetings. In the absence of the Chair, the Vice-Chair shall preside. In the absence of the Chair and Vice-Chair, following majority vote of the then-present members, any CAC member may preside.
 - 2. The CAC shall post meeting notices on the CAB's website to allow residents of the Community to attend CAC meetings. The CAC Liaison (defined below) may assist the CAC and/or coordinate with the CAB Manager regarding the postings.
 - 3. CAC meetings may take place in person, or by telephonic or electronic means (e.g., Zoom).
 - 4. The CAC shall keep written minutes of each meeting and make the minutes available for posting on the Sky Ranch CAB's website.
 - a) The written minutes shall reflect the CAC's activities and any individuals responsible for implementing same, as applicable.
 - b) The written minutes will be provided to CAC members for review and approval at regularly scheduled meetings.
 - 5. If a CAC member is unable to attend a meeting, he or she will notify the Chair and provide input to the Chair prior to the meeting.

H. CAC Recommendations:

- 1. The CAC may forward recommendations, suggestions, advice, or any materials of its choosing (collectively, Recommendations) to the CAB Board for informational purposes only, or to the developer of the Community, as applicable.
- 2. Recommendations of the CAC must represent a quorum of the members of the CAC.
- 3. One of the CAC Leadership positions shall attend at least one of the CAB Board's regular meetings each year and shall provide a written report to the CAB Board regarding the CAC's annual activities for the preceding year, an anticipated work plan and estimated budget for the upcoming year. The CAC Liaison (defined below) may assist the CAC and/or coordinate with the CAB Manager regarding the annual activities, anticipated work plan and estimated budget.
- 4. The CAB Board has no obligation to adopt the CAC's Recommendations, but may do so in its discretion.
- 5. The CAB Board may designate a CAB Board representative or consultant to serve as a liaison between the CAC and CAB Board (CAC Liaison). The purpose of the CAC Liaison is to assist the CAC with budget and activity planning matters.
- V. <u>Amendment of Bylaws</u>: Upon adoption of these Bylaws by the CAB Board, they shall govern all actions of the Citizens Advisory Committee. The CAB Board in its discretion may amend any provision of these Bylaws. The CAC may make a Recommendation to amend these Bylaws to the CAB Board following affirmative vote of at least two thirds of the members of the CAC, and the CAB Board may accept or deny such Recommendation in its discretion.

DocuSign^{*}

Certificate Of Completion

Envelope Id: 348D7793EF864EF0A57A9C1C573E71C0

Subject: Please DocuSign: Sky Ranch CAB - CAC Bylaws (7-08-2022).pdf

Client Name: Sky Ranch CAB

Client Number: 011-045658-OS09-2022

Source Envelope:

Document Pages: 6 Signatures: 2
Certificate Pages: 5 Initials: 0

AutoNav: Enabled

Envelopeld Stamping: Enabled

Time Zone: (UTC-06:00) Central Time (US & Canada)

Envelope Originator:

Status: Completed

Cindy Jenkins

220 S 6th St Ste 300

Minneapolis, MN 55402-1418 Cindy.Jenkins@claconnect.com

IP Address: 67.176.12.84

Record Tracking

Status: Original

8/9/2022 1:47:15 PM

Holder: Cindy Jenkins

Cindy.Jenkins@claconnect.com

Location: DocuSign

Signer Events

Mark Harding

mharding@purecyclewater.com

President

Sky Ranch CAB

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication

(None)

Signature

—DocuSigned by:

Signature Adoption: Drawn on Device

Using IP Address: 204.134.145.82

Timestamp

Sent: 8/9/2022 1:53:20 PM Viewed: 8/9/2022 1:53:51 PM Signed: 8/9/2022 1:54:09 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure:

Accepted: 8/9/2022 1:53:51 PM

ID: 5b480fe9-407b-42dd-9d4a-68cb44d2990f

Katherine Funk

khardy2012@gmail.com

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication

(None)

DocuSigned by:

Katherine Funk

OC30696EA61D415...

Sent: 8/9/2022 1:54:10 PM Viewed: 8/9/2022 1:54:43 PM Signed: 8/9/2022 1:55:59 PM

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style Using IP Address: 73.34.129.139

Signed using mobile

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure:

Accepted: 8/9/2022 1:54:43 PM

In Person Signer Events

ID: 2d414b90-8a83-4fba-8f86-9e18b8803aec

Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp

Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps

Envelope Summary Events	Status	Timestamps
Envelope Sent	Hashed/Encrypted	8/9/2022 1:53:20 PM
Certified Delivered	Security Checked	8/9/2022 1:54:43 PM
Signing Complete	Security Checked	8/9/2022 1:55:59 PM
Completed	Security Checked	8/9/2022 1:55:59 PM
Payment Events	Status	Timestamps
Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure		

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure created on: 2/12/2019 8:04:21 AM Parties agreed to: Mark Harding, Katherine Funk

ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE

From time to time, CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (we, us or Company) may be required by law to provide to you certain written notices or disclosures. Described below are the terms and conditions for providing to you such notices and disclosures electronically through the DocuSign system. Please read the information below carefully and thoroughly, and if you can access this information electronically to your satisfaction and agree to this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure (ERSD), please confirm your agreement by selecting the check-box next to 'I agree to use electronic records and signatures' before clicking 'CONTINUE' within the DocuSign system.

Getting paper copies

At any time, you may request from us a paper copy of any record provided or made available electronically to you by us. You will have the ability to download and print documents we send to you through the DocuSign system during and immediately after the signing session and, if you elect to create a DocuSign account, you may access the documents for a limited period of time (usually 30 days) after such documents are first sent to you. After such time, if you wish for us to send you paper copies of any such documents from our office to you, you will be charged a \$0.00 per-page fee. You may request delivery of such paper copies from us by following the procedure described below.

Withdrawing your consent

If you decide to receive notices and disclosures from us electronically, you may at any time change your mind and tell us that thereafter you want to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format. How you must inform us of your decision to receive future notices and disclosure in paper format and withdraw your consent to receive notices and disclosures electronically is described below.

Consequences of changing your mind

If you elect to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format, it will slow the speed at which we can complete certain steps in transactions with you and delivering services to you because we will need first to send the required notices or disclosures to you in paper format, and then wait until we receive back from you your acknowledgment of your receipt of such paper notices or disclosures. Further, you will no longer be able to use the DocuSign system to receive required notices and consents electronically from us or to sign electronically documents from us.

All notices and disclosures will be sent to you electronically

Unless you tell us otherwise in accordance with the procedures described herein, we will provide electronically to you through the DocuSign system all required notices, disclosures, authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made available to you during the course of our relationship with you. To reduce the chance of you inadvertently not receiving any notice or disclosure, we prefer to provide all of the required notices and disclosures to you by the same method and to the same address that you have given us. Thus, you can receive all the disclosures and notices electronically or in paper format through the paper mail delivery system. If you do not agree with this process, please let us know as described below. Please also see the paragraph immediately above that describes the consequences of your electing not to receive delivery of the notices and disclosures electronically from us.

How to contact CliftonLarsonAllen LLP:

You may contact us to let us know of your changes as to how we may contact you electronically, to request paper copies of certain information from us, and to withdraw your prior consent to receive notices and disclosures electronically as follows:

To contact us by email send messages to: BusinessTechnology@CLAconnect.com

To advise CliftonLarsonAllen LLP of your new email address

To let us know of a change in your email address where we should send notices and disclosures electronically to you, you must send an email message to us at BusinessTechnology@CLAconnect.com and in the body of such request you must state: your previous email address, your new email address. We do not require any other information from you to change your email address.

If you created a DocuSign account, you may update it with your new email address through your account preferences.

To request paper copies from CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

To request delivery from us of paper copies of the notices and disclosures previously provided by us to you electronically, you must send us an email to BusinessTechnology@CLAconnect.com and in the body of such request you must state your email address, full name, mailing address, and telephone number. We will bill you for any fees at that time, if any.

To withdraw your consent with CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

To inform us that you no longer wish to receive future notices and disclosures in electronic format you may:

i. decline to sign a document from within your signing session, and on the subsequent page, select the check-box indicating you wish to withdraw your consent, or you may;

ii. send us an email to BusinessTechnology@CLAconnect.com and in the body of such request you must state your email, full name, mailing address, and telephone number. We do not need any other information from you to withdraw consent.. The consequences of your withdrawing consent for online documents will be that transactions may take a longer time to process..

Required hardware and software

The minimum system requirements for using the DocuSign system may change over time. The current system requirements are found here: https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-signing-system-requirements.

Acknowledging your access and consent to receive and sign documents electronically

To confirm to us that you can access this information electronically, which will be similar to other electronic notices and disclosures that we will provide to you, please confirm that you have read this ERSD, and (i) that you are able to print on paper or electronically save this ERSD for your future reference and access; or (ii) that you are able to email this ERSD to an email address where you will be able to print on paper or save it for your future reference and access. Further, if you consent to receiving notices and disclosures exclusively in electronic format as described herein, then select the check-box next to 'I agree to use electronic records and signatures' before clicking 'CONTINUE' within the DocuSign system.

By selecting the check-box next to 'I agree to use electronic records and signatures', you confirm that:

- You can access and read this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure; and
- You can print on paper this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure, or save or send this Electronic Record and Disclosure to a location where you can print it, for future reference and access; and
- Until or unless you notify CliftonLarsonAllen LLP as described above, you consent to
 receive exclusively through electronic means all notices, disclosures, authorizations,
 acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made
 available to you by CliftonLarsonAllen LLP during the course of your relationship with
 CliftonLarsonAllen LLP.